

Digital

SAT Prep 2025/2026

dummies

A Wiley Brand



4 Practice Tests Online

Extra Math Review Digital Flashcards Study Plans



Ron Woldoff, MBA

Founder, National Test Prep



This book comes with access to more content online.

Quiz yourself, track your progress, and score high on test day!

Register your book or ebook at www.dummies.com/go/getaccess.

Select your product, and then follow the prompts to validate your purchase.

You'll receive an email with your PIN and instructions.

Digital SAT Prep 2025/2026





Digital SAT® Prep 2025/2026

with Online Practice

by Ron Woldoff, MBA



Digital SAT® Prep 2025/2026 For Dummies® with Online Practice

Published by: John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030-5774, www.wiley.com

Copyright © 2024 by John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Hoboken, New Jersey

Published simultaneously in Canada

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise, except as permitted under Sections 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without the prior written permission of the Publisher. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Permissions Department, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030, (201) 748-6011, fax (201) 748-6008, or online at http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions.

Trademarks: Wiley, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, Dummies.com, Making Everything Easier, and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc., and may not be used without written permission. SAT is a registered trademark of the College Board, which was not involved in the production of, and does not endorse, this product. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. John Wiley & Sons, Inc., is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

LIMIT OF LIABILITY/DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY: WHILE THE PUBLISHER AND AUTHORS HAVE USED THEIR BEST EFFORTS IN PREPARING THIS WORK, THEY MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS WORK AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NO WARRANTY MAY BE CREATED OR EXTENDED BY SALES REPRESENTATIVES, WRITTEN SALES MATERIALS OR PROMOTIONAL STATEMENTS FOR THIS WORK. THE FACT THAT AN ORGANIZATION, WEBSITE, OR PRODUCT IS REFERRED TO IN THIS WORK AS A CITATION AND/OR POTENTIAL SOURCE OF FURTHER INFORMATION DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE PUBLISHER AND AUTHORS ENDORSE THE INFORMATION OR SERVICES THE ORGANIZATION, WEBSITE, OR PRODUCT MAY PROVIDE OR RECOMMENDATIONS IT MAY MAKE. THIS WORK IS SOLD WITH THE UNDERSTANDING THAT THE PUBLISHER IS NOT ENGAGED IN RENDERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. THE ADVICE AND STRATEGIES CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE SUITABLE FOR YOUR SITUATION. YOU SHOULD CONSULT WITH A SPECIALIST WHERE APPROPRIATE. FURTHER, READERS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT WEBSITES LISTED IN THIS WORK MAY HAVE CHANGED OR DISAPPEARED BETWEEN WHEN THIS WORK WAS WRITTEN AND WHEN IT IS READ. NEITHER THE PUBLISHER NOR AUTHORS SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFIT OR ANY OTHER COMMERCIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR OTHER DAMAGES.

For general information on our other products and services, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002. For technical support, please visit <code>https://hub.wiley.com/community/support/dummies</code>.

Wiley publishes in a variety of print and electronic formats and by print-on-demand. Some material included with standard print versions of this book may not be included in e-books or in print-on-demand. If this book refers to media such as a CD or DVD that is not included in the version you purchased, you may download this material at http://booksupport.wiley.com. For more information about Wiley products, visit www.wiley.com.

Library of Congress Control Number is available from the publisher.

ISBN 978-1-394-25827-7 (pbk); ISBN 978-1-394-25829-1 (ebk); ISBN 978-1-394-25828-4 (ebk)

Contents at a Glance

Introdu	action	1
Part 1:	Getting Started with the SAT	5
	What to Expect with the SAT	
	Strategies for Success	
Part 2:	Owning the SAT Reading and Writing Section	21
	Raising Your Best SAT Reading and Writing Score	
CHAPTER 4:	What Are They Saying: Sentence Completion and Grammar Questions	
CHAPTER 5:	Thinking Fast: Critical Thinking and Data Questions	51
Part 3:	Owning the SAT Math Section	67
CHAPTER 6:	Raising Your Best Math Score	69
	Simplifying Numbers and Operations	
CHAPTER 8:	Solving Algebra and Functions	93
CHAPTER 9:	Drawing Geometry and Trigonometry	131
CHAPTER 10:	Measuring Statistics and Probability	159
Part 4:	It's All You: Acing the SAT Practice Exams	169
CHAPTER 11:	Practice Exam 1	171
CHAPTER 12:	Practice Exam 1: Answers and Explanations	203
CHAPTER 13:	Practice Exam 2	
CHAPTER 14:	Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations	
CHAPTER 15:	How Did You Do? Scoring Your Practice SAT	269
Part 5:	The Part of Tens	275
CHAPTER 16:	Ten Mistakes That Others Make That You Won't	
CHAPTER 17:	Ten Ways to Get the Most from Practice SATs	
Index.		285

Table of Contents

	NTRODUCTION	1
	About This Book	1
	Icons Used in This Book	
	Beyond the Book	
	Where to Go from Here	
P	PART 1: GETTING STARTED WITH THE SAT	5
CF	HAPTER 1: What to Expect with the SAT	7
Cr	Thinking About the ACT	
	So What's on the Digital SAT?	
	Working the Online, Adaptive SAT	
	Signing Up before Sitting Down: Registering for the SAT	
	How to register	
	When to take the test	
	Accommodating Special Needs	
	Learning disabilities.	
	Physical issues	
	Financial help	
	Making the SAT Work for You as a Foreign Student	
	Examining Your Mind: What the SAT Really Looks For	
	Scoring on the SAT	
	Composite score	
	Score reports	
	220.0.000.00	
CH	HAPTER 2: Strategies for Success	15
	Planning Your Prep Time	
	Starting early: The long-term study time	
	Moving along: The medium-term study time	
	Getting closer: The short-term study time	
		17
	The Exam Is Tomorrow: What to Do the Night Before Your SAT	
	The Exam Is Tomorrow: What to Do the Night Before Your SAT	18
	The Exam Is Tomorrow: What to Do the Night Before Your SAT	18
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT	18
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT	18
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT	18
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension. Focusing during the test.	18
P	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension. Focusing during the test.	18
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension. Focusing during the test. It Isn't You: Testing under Adverse Conditions. PART 2: OWNING THE SAT READING AND WRITING SECTION.	181919191920
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension. Focusing during the test. It Isn't You: Testing under Adverse Conditions. PART 2: OWNING THE SAT READING AND WRITING SECTION. HAPTER 3: Raising Your Best SAT Reading and Writing Score	181919191920
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension. Focusing during the test. It Isn't You: Testing under Adverse Conditions PART 2: OWNING THE SAT READING AND WRITING SECTION. HAPTER 3: Raising Your Best SAT Reading and Writing Score Understanding SAT Reading and Writing.	181919192021
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension Focusing during the test. It Isn't You: Testing under Adverse Conditions PART 2: OWNING THE SAT READING AND WRITING SECTION HAPTER 3: Raising Your Best SAT Reading and Writing Score Understanding SAT Reading and Writing. Managing Your Time with Reading Strategies.	18191919202123
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension Focusing during the test. It Isn't You: Testing under Adverse Conditions PART 2: OWNING THE SAT READING AND WRITING SECTION HAPTER 3: Raising Your Best SAT Reading and Writing Score Understanding SAT Reading and Writing. Managing Your Time with Reading Strategies. Finding the Right Answer, Fast, with More Strategies	181919192021232425
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension. Focusing during the test. It Isn't You: Testing under Adverse Conditions PART 2: OWNING THE SAT READING AND WRITING SECTION. HAPTER 3: Raising Your Best SAT Reading and Writing Score Understanding SAT Reading and Writing. Managing Your Time with Reading Strategies. Finding the Right Answer, Fast, with More Strategies Putting the Strategies to Use with Practice Questions.	181919202123242526
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension. Focusing during the test. It Isn't You: Testing under Adverse Conditions PART 2: OWNING THE SAT READING AND WRITING SECTION. HAPTER 3: Raising Your Best SAT Reading and Writing Score Understanding SAT Reading and Writing. Managing Your Time with Reading Strategies. Finding the Right Answer, Fast, with More Strategies Putting the Strategies to Use with Practice Questions. Detail questions.	181919202123242526
	Show Time: What to Do the Day of Your SAT Starting out that morning. Taking control of the tension. Focusing during the test. It Isn't You: Testing under Adverse Conditions PART 2: OWNING THE SAT READING AND WRITING SECTION. HAPTER 3: Raising Your Best SAT Reading and Writing Score Understanding SAT Reading and Writing. Managing Your Time with Reading Strategies. Finding the Right Answer, Fast, with More Strategies Putting the Strategies to Use with Practice Questions.	181919202123242525

	Practicing with Reading Passages	. 30
	Social studies	. 30
	Science	. 32
	Literature	. 33
	Poetry	. 35
	Milest Ave They Caving Contants Completion	
CHAPTER 4:	What Are They Saying: Sentence Completion	27
	and Grammar Questions	
	Completing Sentences and Using In-Context Vocabulary	
	Killing It Softly: The SAT Grammar Review	
	Grammar and punctuation	
	Transitions	
	Verb matching	
	Verb tension	. 43
	Parallel structure	. 43
	Pronoun cases	. 44
	Punctuation	. 44
	Words in context	
	Practice Questions	. 46
	Practice Answers	. 49
CHAPTER 5:	Thinking Fast: Critical Thinking and Data Questions	
	Starting with the Question Formats	
	Applying the Strategies	. 52
	Exploring the Question Formats	. 52
	Purpose of the underlined sentence	. 52
	Overall structure of the text	. 53
	Paired reading	. 54
	Interpreting data	. 55
	Strengthening or weakening a claim	. 56
	Using quotations for support	. 57
	Completing the text logically	. 58
	Interpreting Research Questions	. 59
	Practice Questions	. 61
	Practice Answers	. 65
PART 3	B: OWNING THE SAT MATH SECTION	67
CHAPTER 6:	Raising Your Best Math Score	69
	Taking On SAT Math	. 69
	Starting with Formulas	
	Typing Your Answers	
	Refreshing the SAT Math Topics	
	,	
CHAPTER 7:	Simplifying Numbers and Operations	73
	Simplifying the Basics	. 73
	Starting with types of numbers	
	Using order of operations	
	Simplifying Numbers and Operations	
	Simplifying prime numbers	
	Simplifying percents	
	Simplifying ratios	
	Simplifying conversions	
	Simplifying exponents	81

	Simplifying square and cube roots	
	Simplifying imaginary <i>i</i>	88
	Simplifying projections	90
CHAPTER 8:	Solving Algebra and Functions	93
	Solving for X	93
	Solving for x with a number	93
	Solving for x with a y	94
	Solving for x in a radical	
	Solving for <i>x</i> in a fraction	
	Solving for <i>x</i> in a reciprocal fraction	
	Solving for More Than One X	
	Solving an absolute value	
	Solving a quadratic	
	Solving the difference of squares	
	Solving an expression	
	Setting Up Equations.	
	Setting up a story	
	Setting up a sum of numbers	
	Setting up interest	
	Setting up rates of change	
	Graphing Coordinate Geometry	
	Graphing a line	
	Graphing two lines	
	Graphing an inequality	
	Graphing a parabola	
	Graphing a circle	
	Graphing a function	.127
	Duranting Commentum and Tules a product	
CHAPTER 9:	Drawing Geometry and Trigonometry	
	Drawing Basic Shapes	.132
	Drawing angles	.132
	Drawing triangles	.135
	Drawing rectangles and squares	.140
	Drawing trapezoids and parallelograms	.140
	Drawing circles	.143
	Drawing overlapping shapes	.144
	Drawing parts of circles	.145
	Drawing 3-D Shapes	
	Drawing rectangular solids and cubes	
	Drawing cylinders and cones	
	Drawing spheres	
	Solving Trigonometry Problems	
	Solving right triangles with SOH CAH TOA	
	Solving unit circles and radians	
	Solving trigonometric equations	
	Solving trigonometric equations	. 137
CHADTED 10	Measuring Statistics and Probability	150
CHAFTER IV		
	Measuring the Mean, Median, and Mode	
	Measuring the mean	
	Measuring the median and mode	
	Measuring the range	
	Measuring Probability	
	Measuring Graph Data	. 163

Measuring bar graphs	163
Measuring circle or pie charts	164
Measuring line graphs	
Measuring scatter plots	
Measuring multiple graphs	166
PART 4: IT'S ALL YOU: ACING THE SAT PRACTICE EXAMS	169
CHAPTER 11: Practice Exam 1	
Section 1: Reading and Writing	
Module 1	
Module 2	
Section 2: Math	193
Module 1	
Module 2	197
CHAPTER 12: Practice Exam 1: Answers and Explanations	
Section 1: Reading and Writing	
Module 1	
Module 2	206
Section 2: Math	209
Module 1	
Module 2	
Answer Key	220
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2	
•	221
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2	221
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing	221 223 223
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing	221 223 223 233
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing	221223233242242
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing	221223233242242
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing	
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 1. Module 2.	221223233242242246
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1.	
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2.	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 3. Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 1.	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. Module 1. Module 2. Module 1. Module 2.	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 3. Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 1.	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. Module 1. Module 2. Module 1. Module 2.	
CHAPTER 13: Practice Exam 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1 Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 1 Module 2 CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1 Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 1 Module 2 Answer Key CHAPTER 15: How Did You Do? Scoring Your Practice SAT Finding Your Reading and Writing Score	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1 Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 2 CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1 Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 2 Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1 Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 2 Section 2: Math Finding Your Reading and Writing Score Finding Your Math Test Score	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Finding Your Reading and Writing Score Finding Your Math Test Score Recording Your Overall Scores	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1 Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 2 CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1 Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 2 CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1 Module 2 Section 2: Math Module 1 Module 2 Answer Key CHAPTER 15: How Did You Do? Scoring Your Practice SAT Finding Your Reading and Writing Score Finding Your Math Test Score Recording Your Overall Scores First practice exam	
Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Module 1. Module 2. CHAPTER 14: Practice Exam 2: Answers and Explanations Section 1: Reading and Writing Module 1. Module 2. Section 2: Math Finding Your Reading and Writing Score Finding Your Math Test Score Recording Your Overall Scores	

PART 5: THE PART OF TENS	275
CHAPTER 16: Ten Mistakes That Others Make That You Won't	277
You Won't Cheat	277
You Won't Neglect Your Break	
You Won't Pack Sugary Snacks	
You Won't Panic Over the Time Limit	
You Won't Run Out of Steam	
You Won't Rush Through the Questions	
You Won't Get Stuck on a Question	
You Won't Stress Over the Answers	
You Won't Change Your Morning Routine	
You Won't Dwell on Previous Modules	
CHAPTER 17: Ten Ways to Get the Most from Practice SATs	281
Practice an Entire SAT Exam in One Sitting	281
Practice Not Making Mistakes under Pressure	
Practice with the Bluebook App	
Practice with Others in the Room	
Practice as a Dress Rehearsal	
Practice Your Competitive Edge	
Practice Your Test-Taking Strategies	
Practice Managing Your Time	
Practice Finding Your Areas of Focus	
Review your Practice SAT Answers and Explanations	
INDEX	205

Introduction

ears ago, during an early gig as a consultant, I sat at a desk that had a For Dummies book on the shelf. The book was something office related, like SQL For Dummies. I took a sticky note and wrote the word "Ron" with a black marker, then placed the note over the word "Dummies" on the spine of the book, so it read, "SQL For Ron." It fit nicely.

Since starting my test-prep company, I've had students who would go on to do great things, and many have had amazingly successful careers. You, too, are in this group of future success stories. How do I know? Because you're on your way to a good school for a college degree, which will open lots of doors, and you're oh-so-close to getting started. You just need to get past this one hurdle called the SAT.

The SAT challenges your ability to conjure up everything you've covered in high school — some stuff you haven't touched in years. Really all you need is a refresher, some strategies, and practice. This book has all that and more: It goes beyond rehashing what you've learned (and forgotten) by providing exam-specific strategies and tips for answering questions quickly and getting through the exam. There are examples, practice questions, and practice exams to help you build your skills, identify areas you need to work on, and build your confidence for test day.

I know deep in my heart that each person I work with can do well on this exam. Right off the bat, I aim for 100 percent success with each student. You're a little rusty here, haven't seen that there, could use a few tips, but you'll pick it up fast and do just fine. Success on the SAT is like anything else: If you know what to do, and you practice, you'll be fine. I get you started with some review and guidance, and you take it from there.

About This Book

Digital SAT Prep 2025/2026 For Dummies with Online Practice is a whirlwind tour of the SAT. This book takes you through each section of the exam, explaining what the test-makers are looking for and how you can deliver it. This book starts at the very beginning to cover all the basic math and verbal concepts, and because you have the capacity, it then challenges you with SAT-level questions. This book also shows you how to approach the questions, avoid common mistakes, and master the intuitive tricks that help you knock it out of the park.

To earn a top score on the SAT, you have three goals:

Know what's on the exam.

That's in this book, so read the whole thing. No matter how well you know a topic, you can discover strategies and avoid common traps, and the SAT has a way of asking a question that's different from what you're used to — or what you learned in the classroom. This book has hundreds of tried-and-true strategies so you can cut through the muck and get the most points on the SAT.

2. Strengthen your weak areas.

Turn to specific sections for targeted information. This book is organized to make it easy for you to find strategies and practice for specific question types that you have trouble with.

For more practice exams and a bonus set of math questions, see the "Beyond the Book" section below.

3. Prepare for the test-taking experience.

You'll need practice exams to get ready for the experience. Packaged with this book are four online practice exams: two in this book, and all four online. When your exam is around the corner, take one or two practice exams in real-life, dress-rehearsal settings. Flip to Part 5 for ten ways to build your skills from the practice exams.

Basically, this book does it all: It prepares you for the exam by bringing your skills from the basic level to the SAT level. What else is there?

There's vocab.

To help you with vocab, as you read through this book, you'll notice that some words have a style all their own. Each SAT vocabulary word in this text appears in *this font*, followed directly by its *connotation* (meaning). Fortunately, the SAT doesn't hammer vocab like it used to, and most of the vocab on the exam is in context, so it's easier to work with. That said, a good way to learn SAT vocab is to encounter it in a question and see what it means along with how it's used. When you get stuck on a vocab word, write it down. This is an effective complement to studying from a list or flash cards.

Icons Used in This Book

Here's how to decode the icons that appear in the margins of this book:



The Tip icon points out helpful hints about strategy — what all-star test-takers know and rookies need to learn.



The Warning icon identifies the sand traps that the SAT writers are hoping you'll fall into as you take the test. Take note of these warnings so you know what to do (and what not to do) as you move from question to question on the real SAT.



The Remember icon connects a previously discussed strategy to the topic or example at hand.



The Play icon indicates an example practice question within the regular chapter text.

Beyond the Book

Besides all the ways this book can help you perform well on the SAT, there are even more online, including these.

- >> Cheat Sheet: At www.dummies.com, type "Digital SAT Prep 2025-2026 For Dummies cheat sheet" in the search box and you'll find the book's cheat sheet, which gives you last-minute details that you'll want to have at your fingertips, including a rundown of how to get the most points on each SAT section.
- >> Practice questions: You'll find about 400 SAT-type questions in the practice exams, plus about 50 bonus SAT-style math problems, all online to help you build your competence and confidence. Focus on areas where you need practice and verify that you're up to speed in other areas. You can select the level of difficulty and answer the questions through untimed and timed quizzes, so you can work at your own speed and gain experience working under pressure.

Register online for access to the additional tests and practice:

- Register your book or e-book at Dummies.com to get your PIN. Go to www.dummies.com/ go/getaccess.
- 2. Select your product from the drop-down list on that page.
- 3. Follow the prompts to validate your product, and then check your email for a confirmation message that includes your PIN and instructions for logging in.



If you do not receive this email within two hours, please check your spam folder before contacting us through our Technical Support website at https://support.wiley.com/ or by phone at 877-762-2974.

Now you're ready to go! You can come back to the practice material as often as you want — simply log on with the username and password you created during your initial login. No need to enter the access code a second time.

Where to Go from Here

Get started! No matter what you do next, start simple. You have exactly what you need right here in your hands, so breathe deep and turn the page. It's all you.

Getting Started with the SAT

IN THIS PART . . .

Getting to know the SAT

Seeing how the SAT measures your performance

Planning your study time

- » Choosing between the ACT and the SAT
- » Seeing what the SAT covers
- Scheduling your study time for the SAT
- » Accommodating for special needs
- » Doing amazing even if English isn't your first language
- » Understanding what the SAT looks for
- » Getting the SAT scoring

Chapter **1**

What to Expect with the SAT

he best and easiest way to reduce your anxiety and own the SAT is to become familiar with it. Knowing what to expect means you can plan for it, so nothing on exam day is a surprise.

In this chapter, you find the basics of the SAT, including when, where, and how often you should take it. This chapter also tells you what sort of scores you receive, explains how to deal with special needs, and gives you a peek into the structure of the actual exam. If English isn't your first language, there are tips on getting the edge over your primarily English-speaking competition.

Thinking About the ACT

Most 11th and 12th graders take one of two, or both, giant exams on their way to college. One is the SAT, and the other is the ACT. Most colleges accept both, but you should check with your target schools just to be sure. When you call or email the college admissions office, among your other questions, ask the following:

- >> Do you require an exam score with my application?
- >> If so, do you accept both the SAT and the ACT?
- >> Do you need me to write the exam essay?

You take the ACT as a paper-based test, but at some testing centers, you have the option to take it on the computer. The paper-based and computer-based versions of the ACT are exactly the same in terms of length, types and numbers of questions, difficulty level, and scoring algorithm.

At the time of this writing, the ACT takes between four and five hours, while the SAT has been shortened to just over two hours. It's possible that in response to the revised SAT, the ACT will change even more, with reduced numbers of questions and shorter reading comp passages. At this time there is no indication of other changes to the ACT, so here's a rundown of the differences between the current ACT and the recently revised SAT.

The SAT and the ACT are similar in overall difficulty. The math is about 90 percent the same, but SAT math goes more in depth than ACT math, while ACT math covers more topics. (ACT math has logarithms, for example, which SAT math does not.) Some students may find ACT math easier.

The ACT also has a Science Test, which the SAT does not. To compensate, the SAT has science-based questions mixed into the Reading and Writing section, but not to the extent of the ACT Science Test. Students who struggle with science may prefer the SAT.

The ACT also ends with an optional essay question, which the SAT does not.

SAT Reading and Writing covers similar topics to ACT Reading and Writing however, the SAT combines these into a two-part module that runs slightly over an hour, while the ACT separates Reading and Writing into two tests, or three tests with the optional essay, totaling about two hours (or close to three hours with the essay). The SAT doesn't have an optional essay, so the entire exam is about two and a half hours, while the ACT can run over five hours if you include the essay.

Basically, it sounds like the digital SAT is a better bet, but I would expect the ACT to respond with its own shorter, digital version sometime soon. In the meantime, for more on the ACT overall, pick up ACT Prep 2025/2026 For Dummies with Online Practice by Lisa Zimmer Hatch and Scott A. Hatch (published by Wiley).

Besides contacting your target schools and checking their websites, you can find more on the application requirements by checking a college guide. A *college guide* is a *compendium* (thorough collection) of school listings and admission requirements. Many libraries and bookstores carry college guides, and you can also talk with your college counselor, who may also have one.



TIP

If college isn't in your immediate future, you may want to take the SAT just to get it out of the way, while the test topics are still fresh in your head. If your plans include a stint in the armed forces or the Peace Corps before hitting higher education, you can keep your options open by taking the SAT before you go. Then when you're ready to get back into the classroom, you'll have some scores to send to the college of your choice. As of this writing, your SAT scores are officially valid for five years, but that could change, or the college you apply to may require newer scores. Just keep that in mind.

So . . . What's on the Digital SAT?

What are you getting into here? Well, it's nothing you can't handle, but it helps to know what's coming up. Here is the digital SAT testing experience, in this order.

- >> Reading and Writing section: Two 32-minute modules consisting of 27 questions each, totaling 64 minutes for 54 questions.
- >> Ten-minute break.
- Math section: Two 35-minute modules consisting of 22 questions each, totaling 70 minutes for 44 questions. You're provided with an on-screen calculator for both modules.

Table 1-1 provides a quick overview of what's on the exam.

TABLE 1-1 Digital SAT Breakdown by Section

Section	Number of Questions	Time Allotted
Reading and Writing Module 1	27 questions	32 minutes
Reading and Writing Module 2	27 questions	32 minutes
Break	-	10 minutes
Math Module 1	22 questions	35 minutes
Math Module 2	22 questions	35 minutes

Each section mixes in a few unscored "trial" questions, which are impossible to discern from the actual, scored questions. This is good — it means you don't get an extra, unscored "trial" module.

Note that the paper-based practice SATs from CollegeBoard.org have more questions in each section (33 questions per Reading and Writing module; 27 questions per Math module), but no stated time limit. These practice SATs are excellent for preparing, but they don't reflect the actual testing experience.

Working the Online, Adaptive SAT

Within each module, each question counts exactly the same toward your score: The more questions you get right, the higher your score for that module. An easy question is worth the same as a hard question. Because you can move back and forth within each section, one strategy is to skip around and answer all the easy questions first, then go back and work the hard questions. If you like this idea, *try it out on a practice test* before exam day.

On the computer version of the exam, the *second* Reading and Writing or Math module becomes easier or harder based on your performance on the *first* one. For example, if you do extremely well on the first Math module, the SAT thinks you're good at math, so it makes the second Math module harder. Even if you don't get as many right answers in the second Math module, your score will be good because the questions were harder. Your score will definitely be higher than the score of someone who bombs the first Math module — so the SAT thinks they're not good at math — but does great in the second Math module, because the questions were much easier.

Signing Up before Sitting Down: Registering for the SAT

The SAT is given at multiple times at select high schools and testing centers throughout the United States and in English-speaking schools in many other countries. This section explains how and when to register for an exam and the acceptable methods of payment.

How to register

You can register for the SAT online, by mail, or, if you've taken the SAT before, by phone.

Online registration is simple: Go to www.sat.collegeboard.org/register to create an account, sign up, and choose a test center and date. You need to have a credit card or PayPal account and a digital photo of yourself ready to upload. Be sure the photo meets the College Board's standards: a headshot where your whole face is visible and you're the only one in the photo. Head coverings are okay if they're religious in nature.

You can also register by mail. At the time of this writing, you have to register by mail if you're younger than 13 or older than 21 or if you need to take the exam on a Sunday for religious reasons.

You can also ask your school guidance counselor for a registration form. If you're homeschooled, call the nearest public or private high school, or call the College Board Customer Service Center for help. If you register by mail, you'll have to attach a photo and enclose registration payment (credit card number, a check from a United States bank, or a bank draft).

The College Board Customer Service line within the U.S. is 866-756-7346 and outside the U.S. is 212-713-7789. Hearing-impaired test-takers can call the TTY Customer Service number, which within the U.S. is 888-857-2477 and outside the U.S. is 609-882-4118. You can also contact the College Board by mail at this address: College Board SSD Program, P.O. Box 8060, Mount Vernon, IL 62864-0060.



TIP

However you register, you'll be asked whether you want to sign up for the Student Search Service. Answer yes and fill out the questionnaire. Colleges, universities, and some scholarship-granting organizations receive information about you from this service. Expect lots of emails and letters — a little annoying, perhaps, but it's good to know that the schools are interested in you. You may also discover a school or scholarship that you weren't aware of but that meets your needs perfectly.



Scammers are interested in you, too. Don't send personal or financial information to any organization unless you know it's legitimate. You know this, of course, but exam registration and college application is a new game. Not sure something is legit? Call the College Board Customer Service line to check.

When to take the test

The SAT is typically offered seven times a year, and you can take it as often as you want. Ideally, you take it two or three times, but the door is open if you want another chance. Most high schoolers follow this pattern.

- >> Start in the fall of your sophomore year: Here you take the PSAT/NMSQT, which stands for Preliminary SAT/National Merit Scholarship Qualifying Test, and is sort of a junior SAT, for the first time. For you as a 10th grader, this exam doesn't count for much other than a practice and eye-opener of the series of exams to come. See Chapter 2 for more on the PSAT.
- >> Continue in the fall of your junior year: Here you take the PSAT/NMSQT again, only this time it counts. If you do well, it opens the door to many scholarship opportunities and special programs. No pressure now.
- >> In the spring of your junior year: Take the SAT as a first run, which serves as a practice test, though you can send in your scores if you're pleased with them. Note that you can also practice with an unscored practice exam, but this experience isn't quite the same as the real thing. Some juniors take the SAT twice during the spring.
- >> Again in the fall of your senior year: The SAT strikes again, but this time you're ready, and you should do well enough to use these scores for your application. You also have the chance for a few tries. If you're an early decision candidate, you should take the test in October or November.
- >> Finally, in the winter of your senior year: You have one more chance to get it right, or if you did get it right, you have one more chance to get that scholarship. By now you're a pro, so success should be right in your hands. There may be some juniors in the room with you.



The SAT is typically given on a Saturday, but there are exceptions for those who can't on Saturday for religious reasons. If you fall into that category, your SAT may be on a Sunday or a Wednesday following a Saturday SAT day. Get a letter from your religious leader on letterhead and mail it in with your registration form.



Register early to select a test site. When you register, you may request a test site, but if it's filled, you get an alternate. So don't delay — send in the form or register online as soon as you know when and where you want to take the exam. You'll probably want to test at your own high school, if possible, where the campus setting is familiar to you.

Accommodating Special Needs

Like many products and services, the SAT stresses fairness and equal access for all students, including those with special needs. Even if you don't think you belong in this category, skim this section. You may discover an option that will help you "show what you know" when it matters most.

Learning disabilities

If you have a learning disability, you may be allowed to take the SAT under special conditions. The first step is to get an Eligibility Form from your school counselor. (Homeschoolers, call a local high school.) You may also want to ask your college counseling or guidance office for a copy of the *College Board Services for Students with Disabilities* brochure. If your school doesn't have one, contact the College Board directly or check the testing agency's website (https://accommodations.collegeboard.org).



Once you're certified for accommodations on any College Board test (an AP, an SAT Subject Test, or the PSAT/NMSQT), you're certified for all College Board tests, unless your need for accommodation arises from something temporary, as described in the next section. If you fall into that category, see the next section for more information.

File the form well in advance of the time you expect to take the test. If the College Board grants you the accommodation, you'll be eligible for extra time on the SAT, which could mean an extra 50 percent of time for each test. So if a regular test-taker has 32 minutes per verbal module, for example, an extended-timer gets 48 minutes.

Physical issues

At no additional charge, the SAT also provides wheelchair accessibility, large-print tests, and other accommodations for students who need them. Be sure to submit your Eligibility Form early so that the College Board can request documentation and get things ready for you. You can send paper documentation or file an Eligibility Form online. Check out https://accommodations.collegeboard.org for details.

If a physical issue (say, a broken arm) occurs shortly before your scheduled SAT and you can't easily take the exam at a later date, call College Board Customer Service, explain the situation, and have your physician fill out the forms requesting whatever accommodation you need.



Questions about special needs? Your high school's counselor or principal can help, or you can check the preceding link or email the College Board (ssd@info.collegeboard.org).

Financial help

If you need financial help, you can apply for a fee waiver, available to low-income high school juniors and seniors who live in the United States, Puerto Rico, and other American territories. (United States citizens living in other countries may also be eligible for fee waivers.) The College Board also gives you four extra score reports for free, along with four request forms for college application fee waivers. The College Board does what it can.

If you're worried about paying for school later on, there are loans, grants, scholarships, and other programs to help you achieve success in college and hopefully your career. There are many, many opportunities and places to look, so talk to your school counselor. That's what the counselor is for!

You can also check with your school counselor for fee-waiver applications. (As with everything SAT, if you're a homeschooler, call a local high school for a form.) And be careful to avoid additional fees when you can. You run into extra charges for late or changed registration and for some extras — super-speedy scores, an analysis of your performance, and the like. (See the section, "Scoring on the SAT," later in this chapter for more information on score-reporting options.)

Making the SAT Work for You as a Foreign Student

This is an opportunity for you to stand out among your high school peers and represent with honors the country where you are a national! A high score on this exam is certainly within your reach, even if English is not your first language, if you know what to do and practice your skills.

For the SAT Reading and Writing section, you may get stuck on some of the academic vocabulary. To work on this, as you practice SAT-level reading, underline and look up any word you don't know. After a while, you'll know enough of the words.

Also, the vocabulary strategy for all SAT-taking students helps you as well: As discussed in this book's intro, be sure to learn any word in *this font*, which is an SAT vocabulary word followed by its *elucidation* (definition).

You also have probably studied the mechanics of English more than your native English-born counterparts, so you may have a better academic understanding of sentence structure and verb form than they do. I have observed many, many times in a class with both English-only and non-native English speakers that after a refresher of the basics of this test, the non-native English speakers often do much better than the native English speakers!

One thing that you can do right now is start reading books in English. Pick movies or novels that you love in your own language and read the English versions. You'll be more into the story, and you'll know the gist of events well enough to pick up the English style of writing. Most importantly, you'll learn the placement of grammar and the style of expressive writing.

For the SAT Math section, the math doesn't change from language to language, so if you can crack the basic language used to put forth the problem, you should do just fine. There may be some minute differences (for example, 2,345.67 in one language may appear as 2.345,67 in another), but the basics are the same, and the small differences are easy to master. Just be sure to practice using SAT materials.

Examining Your Mind: What the SAT Really Looks For

The exam attempts to measure the skills you need to succeed in school and in the workplace. It's not a measure of how smart you are, nor is it a measure of how well you do in school. It measures how adaptable you are, and especially how well you prepare for a giant exam.



TIP

The college application essay is a great place to put your scores in perspective. If your SAT score struggles from a special circumstance, such as a learning disability, a school that doesn't value academics, a family tragedy, or any other reason, you may want to explain your situation in an essay. A good essay gives the college a way to interpret your achievement and to see you, the applicant, in more detail. For help with the college admission essay, check out *College Admission Essays For Dummies* by Jessica Brenner (Wiley).

The SAT doesn't test facts you studied in school. You don't need to know when Columbus sailed the Atlantic or how to calculate the molecular weight of an atom. Instead, the SAT takes aim at your ability to follow a logical sequence to comprehend what you've read and write grammatically well in Standard English. The math portion checks on the math skills you have picked up during your years in high school. The point is that the SAT isn't a giant final exam or a review of high school. It's a test of your *skills*, *not* your knowledge.

Use this to your advantage. The skills for the Reading and Writing section, covered in Part 2, are easy to learn and just take practice to master. The skills for the Math section are also of a limited scope and are captured in Part 3 of this book. In other words, pretty much everything you need to know for the SAT fits into a medium-sized book. There may be an occasional "oddball" question as the SAT steps outside its defined scope of topics, but these questions are very few and very far between.

One *caveat* (disclaimer) to the preceding claim: Everything you need to know for the SAT is right here in this book, *assuming* you already have a basic grasp of English and math. This claim assumes that you have certain skills at the basic high school level: You can read and understand a narrative in English, you can construct a complete sentence in English, and you can execute basic math, such as long division and adding fractions. If any of these topics is an area where you struggle, there are literally thousands of books and resources available to you, many free online or at a library. You can also check with your school for any type of remedial program, including student tutors. This is something you can easily fix and place into the past, and it'll help you far beyond this exam.

Scoring on the SAT

The SAT gives colleges an in-depth look at your skills and performance. If you take the exam more than once, as most students do, you can use the detailed information from your score reports to craft a personalized study program and zero in on the skills you need to fine-tune.

Composite score

Your exam score, called the *composite score*, is the score that everyone is worried about. It's the sum of the Reading and Writing section (200 to 800 points) and Math section (also 200 to 800 points). The maximum composite score is 1600, and the minimum is 400, which you get for showing up.



You can run through the basics of converting your correct answers to a tangible SAT score in Chapter 15, following the practice exams in Part 4.

Score reports

At the time of this writing, the SAT provides four score reports, which can be sent to your choice of schools. (Yikes? Not really. More like, Yes!) If you want to send out more reports to more schools, you can do so for a nominal fee. Check the College Board website at www.collegeboard.org for current prices. You can request additional score reports when you sign up for the exam, when you take the exam, or after the fact. At the time of this writing, your scores are good for five years.

After you get your SAT scores, you can order a Question-and-Answer Service (QAS), which shows each question from the exam, which answer you selected, and if applicable, the correct answer. There may be a small fee for this, and the fee waiver may apply. If you are planning to retake the SAT, this service is a lifesaver: It's like turning on a light to see your exam performance. The bad thing is that this service isn't available for some tests, but the good thing is that it is available with your PSAT, so use that!

Score reports arrive in your mailbox and at your high school a few weeks after your test, and in your email about a week sooner. The College Board usually posts on its website the date that the test scores will be available.

Last thing. Be sure to create a free College Board account at www.collegeboard.org, where you can check your scores and register for the PSAT and SAT. Here, along with your score, you can find how well you did in comparison to everyone else who took the exam when you did. You can also immediately access the QAS and get right to the questions. Plus, you can get the Bluebook app and practice SAT pdfs, all for free.